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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: I'm Eva

          3  Moskowitz, and I'm Chair of the City Council

          4  Education Committee, and we're going to call this

          5  meeting to order.

          6                 We are joined by Speaker Gifford

          7  Miller, and Council Member Al Vann. As I'm sure

          8  everyone knows, we've had many late-night meetings,

          9  I know my colleagues are on their way, and we also

         10  have a meeting in the other room.

         11                 Today we are having an oversight

         12  hearing, our second oversight hearing on the Mayor's

         13  Retention Policy.

         14                 We had an earlier hearing several

         15  months ago where we focused on primarily the merits

         16  of the policy, as well as the planned

         17  implementation. At this date we've seen some of the

         18  implementation, and it has been less than stellar or

         19  abysmal, depending on how you look at it. It has

         20  been fundamentally inadequate. Almost everything

         21  that could go wrong did go wrong, and one of the

         22  reasons we're here is to understand why the

         23  implementation was so poor.

         24                 Unfortunately, it's very difficult to

         25  do that, because the Department of Education has
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          2  refused to testify this morning, and I just want to

          3  say for the record that I find that objectionable.

          4  The Mayor has staked his reputation on this policy,

          5  $115 million is being spent on this policy, and to

          6  simply refuse to show up to a hearing is

          7  unacceptable.

          8                 Moreover, the Committee's request for

          9  information, which made it very, very clear that

         10  this was an oversight hearing on the implementation

         11  of the policy, has gone unanswered to date.

         12                 This was sent on June 7th and we had

         13  a very specific questions about the nature of the

         14  interventions and the cost of those interventions.

         15                 It was initially announced that $8

         16  million was going to be spent some time during the

         17  month of March for interventions and test prep, and

         18  we wanted to understand exactly what those

         19  interventions were, and what that kind of cost

         20  benefit analysis was. Again, it's hard to do that

         21  without the Department.

         22                 I also wanted to understand how the

         23  answer booklet did not match the -- the answer

         24  choices, I should say, did not match the exam

         25  booklets, and who exactly was responsible for that,
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          2  what is the relationship between the testing company

          3  and the DOE, did the contract have any fiduciary

          4  consequences, given that particular screw up.

          5                 There are a whole host of questions

          6  that come along with how poorly this policy is

          7  implemented.

          8                 We're also interested in how the

          9  appeals process will work, although I personally was

         10  glad that there was an appeals process, because I

         11  thought it was important that teachers have some

         12  level of input. Exactly how that's working is

         13  something of concern to me. Appeals processes in

         14  general the Department has implemented have not been

         15  good.

         16                 On the flipside of that, I also want

         17  to understand how the Administration has suggested

         18  that there may be a few thousand children who are

         19  exempted from the retention policy. It strikes me as

         20  somewhat inconsistent, even though I'm a critic of

         21  the policy, but now we may have a few thousand

         22  children who score level one and yet are passed on,

         23  what is the academic plan for those particular

         24  children.

         25                 There are a host of questions we
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          2  have. We're delighted that we have a stellar list of

          3  panelists to help us answer these questions, but

          4  that's no excuse for the Department not being here.

          5                 I'm going to turn the microphone over

          6  to the Speaker of the City Council, who has been

          7  very outspoken on this topic for months now.

          8                 Welcome, Mr. Speaker.

          9                 SPEAKER MILLER: Thank you, Madam

         10  Chair.

         11                 Thank you for your leadership on this

         12  issue, and for your leadership of this Committee,

         13  and in making sure that the Council and the City is

         14  focused on the most important job that the City of

         15  New York has, which is educating our children.

         16                 I want to also thank Council Member

         17  Lopez, who is the prime sponsor of the resolution

         18  that we're considering today, for her leadership in

         19  speaking out against this policy, because I believe

         20  that the third grade retention policy which the

         21  Department of Education has implemented, is a

         22  terrible mistake, which is going to redound,

         23  unfortunately, to the damage of thousands of

         24  children, and it needs to be reversed.

         25                 Very simply, I think it's very
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          2  important to note that I am opposed to social

          3  promotion, as are almost all of the people that I

          4  ever speak with. Nobody believes that it is a good

          5  idea to just pass children along who aren't prepared

          6  to learn at the level that we're passing them along

          7  to.

          8                 The question is, first, how do we

          9  determine what children are not ready to move on?

         10                 And, second, what are we doing in

         11  order to ensure that they are?

         12                 And in both of these cases, I think

         13  that the current policy of the Department of

         14  Education fails miserably.

         15                 Clearly they are not able to

         16  implement this policy in a fair or meaningful way.

         17  The testing process was by the Mayor's own

         18  concession, literally an experience that would have

         19  been better run by the keystone cops. It was

         20  bumbling, it contained numerous errors. If passing

         21  the test, of the testing process was necessary for

         22  the Department of Education to move on to the next

         23  school year, they would not be coming back next

         24  year, because they flunked the administration of the

         25  test process, completely.
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          2                 And it points up, though, how absurd

          3  it is, the notion of having one test solely by

          4  itself be the determiner of whether or not an

          5  eight-year-old who is taking a series of questions

          6  with bubbles, whether or not that eight-year-old is

          7  prepared to move on to the next level, and, in fact,

          8  the Chancellor and the Department of Education

          9  essentially acknowledged this, after originally

         10  putting out their policy by putting in place an

         11  appeals process.

         12                 They said, you know what? You're

         13  right, we should have principals and teachers

         14  involved in the decision-making.

         15                 But this is backwards. And making

         16  that kind of a concession does not address the

         17  fundamental problem, which is that a single test for

         18  an eight-year-old, is not the appropriate way of

         19  making that determination.

         20                 And an appeals process, because the

         21  Department of Education is running it, we know it

         22  will be run poorly, and in particular, it

         23  discriminates against particularly low-performing

         24  schools without stable leadership. Because if

         25  teachers are leaving, or if principals are leaving,
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          2  when a child is supposed to go back to summer

          3  school, and take the test again, how is it that

          4  they're going to participate fairly in the appeals

          5  process for that child?

          6                 And, so, what will happen is, is that

          7  the kids who are most, who are receiving the worst

          8  level of service, who are not in schools that are

          9  stable and are performing well, are the ones who

         10  will be most unfairly impacted by this appeals

         11  process.

         12                 The Department of Education should go

         13  back to the drawing board, as their own educational

         14  policy panel suggested that they should do, as

         15  almost every educator in the City, the State and the

         16  country, you know, who has commented on this issue,

         17  the Chicago experience has certainly suggested they

         18  should go back to the drawing board and come up with

         19  a sensible, fair policy for eliminating social

         20  promotion.

         21                 And I think that's the final point I

         22  want to make here on this point, which is that we

         23  should be having a very vigorous discussion about

         24  how to end social promotion, and how to make sure

         25  that we're not passing kids along who aren't ready
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          2  to learn. But that should be a vigorous discussion

          3  about how to do it in a way that is fair to all

          4  kids, and it should be focused on ensuring that we

          5  don't really have to deal with social promotion

          6  because kids are actually learning at the level that

          7  they're supposed to be learning at in the first

          8  place.

          9                 And that's the final point that I

         10  want to make, which is that this Council has put out

         11  a positive vision about how to help kids achieve in

         12  Kindergarten through third grade. We should be

         13  intervening long before third grade arrives. We know

         14  kids that are struggling, and to wait until third

         15  grade to intervene makes no sense whatsoever. And we

         16  should be intervening in a way that gives these kids

         17  a real opportunity at success. And one thing I'm

         18  very proud of and I want to thank the Administration

         19  for the commitment to, is that in this budget that

         20  we agreed to last night, it contains $35 million to

         21  lower class size now in Kindergarten through third

         22  grade where possible.

         23                 This is a major step in the right

         24  direction because we know that smaller class sizes

         25  create greater educational achievement. And, so,
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          2  we're moving in the right direction in terms of

          3  trying to actually help every third grader succeed.

          4  We should be making sure every second grader and

          5  first grader and kindergarten child, and we should

          6  be expanding pre-K, making sure that we're really

          7  providing a positive vision for how to help kids

          8  achieve, rather than focusing on how to flunk them.

          9                 With that, I just want to thank all

         10  of my colleagues, particularly the Chair, and the

         11  sponsor of the resolution, Margarita Lopez, who has

         12  spoken loudly and clearly and repeatedly on this

         13  subject, and say that we continue to expect that

         14  we're not letting go of this issue.

         15                 The Department of Education failure

         16  to show up and explain why it is that 12,000

         17  children are being held back next year is not going

         18  to be sufficient for us to let go of this issue.

         19  We're going to stay on this issue until we finally

         20  get it right, and I thank the Chair and my

         21  colleagues for their leadership.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: We have been

         23  joined by Council Member Leroy Comrie from Queens,

         24  and as was mentioned already, Council Member

         25  Margarita Lopez from Manhattan.
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          2                 Council Member Lopez, if you would

          3  like to make any kind of opening statement, I would

          4  invite you to do so.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you. I

          6  thank both of you. I think that this is long

          7  overdue. I believe that at this point we just have

          8  to pick up the pieces of the life of children that

          9  we have, in my opinion, passed over them. I think

         10  that we needed to address the problem of our

         11  children in our schools about the policy of

         12  retention, but not in the fashion that has been

         13  done.

         14                 And I think that we have done a very

         15  poor example in government how to deal with the

         16  question of lack of an appropriate education system

         17  that will help them to move forward.

         18                 This policy, in my opinion, was

         19  conceived in ways that I, today, say cannot

         20  comprehend, and only was modified as the process was

         21  moving forward.

         22                 It is fascinating for me to see this

         23  policy today, including many of the criticisms that

         24  I personally put in place, together with the

         25  organization Time Out From Testing. And today I'm
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          2  glad that we are going to look into the resolution,

          3  and I want to thank the Speaker for the leadership

          4  that he has put on this, and the Councilwoman, Chair

          5  of this Committee, for finally having this hearing

          6  to look into this policy.

          7                 I want to close my statement

          8  indicating, in my district I have the pleasure to

          9  have this school that scored the highest in the

         10  entire Manhattan in the passage of the test, and I

         11  also have the honor to have the children who have

         12  the school that failed in the highest number

         13  possible, and I keep talking about the two cities

         14  that we have, because we do have two cities in our

         15  education system, and if we don't want to look at

         16  it, that's fine with me. But I'm not blind, I'm not

         17  a liar, and I'm going to keep saying it, looking at

         18  the truth, because the truth is that this system is

         19  broken, and the only way to fix it, reduced class

         20  sizes, put the necessary resources in place in the

         21  schools for the teachers, and you will see children

         22  being passed to the next level with the education

         23  that they really need and deserve.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you.
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          2                 We are first going to hear from Jill

          3  Chaifetz, Executive Director of Advocates For

          4  Children, and then the honorable Herman Badillo.

          5                 MS. CHAIFETZ: I'd like to thank the

          6  Council for inviting me to speak this morning

          7  regarding the Council's resolution opposing the

          8  Mayor's third grade retention policy.

          9                 For more than 30 years AFC has worked

         10  with New York City's most vulnerable and

         11  impoverished families to ensure quality and equal

         12  public education. Our agency has seen DOE policies

         13  come and go, but it's with both disappointment and

         14  anger that we now see a policy that has already

         15  failed in New York City once be implemented again

         16  for reasons clearly not based on good educational

         17  practice about what works, either in New York City

         18  or in other urban school districts across the

         19  country.

         20                 So, we oppose. Our opposition to

         21  retain on the basis of a single test score is one of

         22  our major reasons for opposition to this policy.

         23                 We support the Council's resolution

         24  that opposes the Mayor's plan to automatically

         25  retain third graders on the sole basis of a
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          2  standardized test score.

          3                 The Council joins all of the major

          4  educational research and testing organizations who

          5  oppose using test results as a sole criterion for

          6  advancement or retention, since judging a particular

          7  student on the basis of a single exam is inherently

          8  unreliable, and an unfair measure of his or her

          9  actual level of achievement.

         10                 In fact, there are few educational

         11  issues about which there is such a powerful

         12  consensus among professionals in the field.

         13                 The American Education Research

         14  Association, AERA, the nation's largest professional

         15  organization devoted to the scientific study of

         16  education, opposes their use in this way. As does

         17  the National Board of Educational Testing, the

         18  International Reading Association, and National

         19  Council of Teachers of Mathematics, which argues

         20  that the far-reaching and critical educational

         21  decisions should be made only on the basis of

         22  multiple measures.

         23                 The National Academy of Sciences

         24  published a comprehensive report explaining in

         25  detail why the use of high stakes testing is
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          2  intellectually indefensible, as well as

          3  counterproductive.

          4                 As the authors point out, "no single

          5  test score could be considered a definitive measure

          6  of the student's knowledge."

          7                 Harcourt and CT McGraw Hill, the two

          8  largest companies that produced standardized tests,

          9  and the developers of New York City's third grade

         10  reading and math exam, are on the record opposing

         11  the use of their test as the exclusive criterion for

         12  decisions about retention, because they can never be

         13  a reliable and/or a complete measure of what

         14  students may or may not know.

         15                 In addition, as with all standardized

         16  tests, the substantial error of margin exists

         17  inescapable, given the nature of these exams. Thus,

         18  it's likely that some number of students who scored

         19  at level one might have scored higher and

         20  vice-versa, if statistical uncertaintees involved

         21  were taken into account.

         22                 There has also been problems upon

         23  problems with the administration of this test, which

         24  should have invalidated the test at the very least

         25  for those who had to retake the test after having
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          2  viewed some of the test questions given in prior

          3  years, which is bad enough, and then were given

          4  answer sheets that didn't match the test questions.

          5  That really borders on the outrageous.

          6                 Retention is something that in some

          7  cases may be beneficial to a student, but such a

          8  determination can only be made by looking at the

          9  totality of the student, her work, her participation

         10  in class and her attendance, as well as test scores.

         11  Test scores alone never tell the whole story.

         12                 We oppose this policy because it

         13  harms students' educational prospects. After

         14  reviewing the many controlled studies on grade

         15  retention, the National Academy of Sciences report

         16  concluded that low-performing students who have been

         17  retained in Kindergarten or primary grades lose

         18  ground, both academically and socially, relative to

         19  similar students who have been promoted.

         20                 A longitudinal study of more than

         21  12,000 students concluded that being held back

         22  before the 8th grade increased the likelihood of

         23  dropping out by 12th grade by more than 200 percent.

         24                 Furthermore, students who are held

         25  back before the eighth grade were more than four
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          2  times as likely as students who were not held back

          3  to not complete high school or receive a GED six

          4  years later.

          5                 If this were not evidence enough, New

          6  York City has actually tried this message 20 years

          7  ago, and it was already determined to be a failure.

          8                 In 1981, then-Chancellor Frank

          9  Macchiarola, launched a large scale retention

         10  program called "The Gates Program" that held back

         11  25,000 students in the fourth and seventh grades in

         12  the case of low scores on the Citywide reading test.

         13                 In following years, the program was

         14  expanded to students who had low scores on

         15  standardized math exams, as well.

         16                 The program was later rescinded, and

         17  research indicated that the achievement level of

         18  retained students had not improved compared to

         19  students with similar scores who were promoted in

         20  earlier years.

         21                 This, even after extensive

         22  intervention and summer school, at a cost of more

         23  than $100 million per year.

         24                 Moreover, long-term follow-up showed

         25  that 40 percent of the students who were retained
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          2  eventually dropped out, compared to 25 percent of

          3  those with similar test scores, who had been

          4  promoted.

          5                 Why repeat what we know does not

          6  work?

          7                 More recently, the large scale

          8  retention policy carried out in Chicago and

          9  mentioned in the Council's resolution, has also been

         10  at best ineffective, and at worst, extremely

         11  detrimental.

         12                 An independent evaluation concluded

         13  that results for those students who were retained

         14  even after summer school has been dismal.

         15                 As the researchers noted, few of

         16  these students retained in 1997 made adequate

         17  progress the next year and after two years in the

         18  same grade, and at second summer bridge, only 43

         19  percent of retained third graders and 47 percent of

         20  retained sixth graders were able to raise their test

         21  scores to promotional cutoff.

         22                 Passing rates were lowest among

         23  retained eighth graders, because so many of these

         24  students dropped out.

         25                 In addition to numerous reports by
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          2  researchers demonstrating the destructive impact of

          3  a retention policy based solely on standardized test

          4  scores, academics, heads of organizations, testing

          5  experts and parents have come out in strong

          6  opposition to the Mayor's proposal.

          7                 AFC, along with Class Size Matters,

          8  released a letter to the Mayor in February, urging

          9  them to reconsider the damaging third grade

         10  retention plan. It was signed by over 100 academics,

         11  heads of organizations, and testing experts, all

         12  opposed to the policy. But instead of listening to

         13  the academics and testing experts. This

         14  Administration, instead, had three of the members of

         15  the Panel on Educational Policy who oppose this

         16  retention policy removed from their positions at the

         17  last moment in order to ram through a policy that

         18  has no sound educational basis.

         19                 The practice of retaining large

         20  numbers of New York City students on the base of

         21  test scores alone is likely to disproportionately

         22  affect those who are poor, and minorities.

         23                 This has been borne out by the data

         24  about which schools had the highest numbers of

         25  students scoring at level 1.
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          2                 As reported in the New York Times

          3  last week, results of Citywide third grade exams

          4  show the City's lowest-performing school districts

          5  had as many as a third of the eligible students

          6  failed to meet the cutoff for promotion into the

          7  fourth grade.

          8                 For example, in District 5 in Harlem

          9  and in District 16 in Bed Stuy, one in three

         10  children now face the prospect of being retained.

         11                 The data clearly shows that it is

         12  impoverished black and Latino students who will bear

         13  the brunt of this policy, a policy that will likely

         14  result in a higher drop-out rate for this grade than

         15  we are currently experiencing.

         16                 Lastly, we oppose this due to the

         17  cost and for a better use of such funds. It now

         18  looks at minimum the program will cost at least $115

         19  million, that could go easily up to $200 million

         20  when you add all the different kinds of remediation

         21  that is being discussed.

         22                 This is a colossal waste of money for

         23  a program that has a disastrous track record. At a

         24  time of fiscal austerity the DOE should be focusing

         25  on proven strategies at work, and there are
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          2  effective solutions for assisting students who are

          3  behind in reading and math. Blanket retention

          4  policies are not one of them.

          5                 We urge the DOE put into practice

          6  measures that identify students at risk of

          7  low-achievement earlier in their educational

          8  careers, provide them with programs that research

          9  and experience have been shown to actually improve

         10  their chance for success, including increased access

         11  to pre-Kindergarten, smaller classes where they can

         12  receive more individual attention and support from

         13  their classroom teachers, and intended intervention

         14  for those who have fallen behind, including the

         15  after school and/or weekend tutoring.

         16                 For these reasons, AFC supports the

         17  Council resolutions, and we thank you very much for

         18  this opportunity to submit our testimony.

         19                 I just quickly would like to say we

         20  also have been having a hold-over hot line in our

         21  office, and we released all kinds of materials for

         22  parents about how to do this appeal, and what we're

         23  finding is that the way in which it has been

         24  implemented has been extremely shoddy at best.

         25                 We're hearing that letters are going

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  out in backpacks, and nothing is being checked off

          3  so the parents don't know whether their kids are

          4  being retained or not. Some parents have only gotten

          5  notice this week their child is being retained, and

          6  summer school is starting in less than two weeks.

          7                 The whole idea of the appeal process,

          8  which again we think is a good thing as well, we

          9  share your view, however, if you look at the number

         10  of the schools that have the highest number of kids

         11  going at level one, we don't know how it would be

         12  humanely possible for teachers to actually do a

         13  portfolio when two-thirds of their class are scoring

         14  at level one. It's not possible, and they have

         15  little more than a week to do so. All we can

         16  conclude is that it's actually not happening in any

         17  kind of manner.

         18                 Thanks very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. We

         20  have been joined, Helen Foster had to step out and

         21  vote, but she has joined us.

         22                 We're going to hold questions for a

         23  few minutes and hear from the honorable Herman

         24  Badillo, and then we'll have some questions, then we

         25  have a second panel.
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          2                 Thank you very much. We're going to

          3  just hear from another panelist, and then there will

          4  be time for questions.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Badillo.

          6                 MR. BADILLO: Thank you, Madam Chair,

          7  and members of the Committee on Education.

          8                 I'm here to support the Mayor's

          9  policy and to oppose Resolution No. 152-A -- 252-A.

         10  This should come as no surprise to you, because as

         11  you know, throughout my political career, I've been

         12  opposed to social promotion, as I was opposed to

         13  open enrollment of the City University.

         14                 It only took me 30 years to end open

         15  enrollment at the City University, but this one is

         16  going to take a long time, longer. Although, I want

         17  to remind you that I was the one who instituted the

         18  Gates Program, when I was Deputy Mayor in 1977, and

         19  it was not a failure. What happened was that

         20  Chancellor Macchiarola left and another Chancellor

         21  came in, the program was ended, and I'm sure that

         22  Chancellor Macchiarola would be happy to come before

         23  this Committee to testify.

         24                 I also mention to the Chair that last

         25  week I met with Paul Valles, who was in Chicago, and
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          2  he has said that the statements that the ending of

          3  social promotion has not worked in Chicago are

          4  false, and he is now carrying out the same program

          5  as the Chancellor in Philadelphia, and he has said

          6  that if this Committee invites him to testify, he

          7  will be very happy to testify both about what he has

          8  done in Chicago and what he is doing presently in

          9  Philadelphia.

         10                 Now, last, two weeks ago, the

         11  newspapers published the result of the fourth and

         12  eighth grade tests, and they said, well, it's a

         13  little bit better in the fourth grade, a little bit

         14  better in the eighth grade, about somewhere in the

         15  thirties, but nobody got excited about it.

         16                 However, the reality is reflected in

         17  the results that were published school-by-school in

         18  the New York Times on Sunday, June 6th. This last

         19  Sunday, June 6th, and I just want to quote, from

         20  some of the schools in my former congressional

         21  district on the results of students who met

         22  standards in the eighth grade.

         23                 School Number 149, nine percent.

         24  School Number 151, two percent. School Number 162,

         25  25 percent. School Number 184, nine percent. School
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          2  Number 20, nine percent. School Number 9 and Number

          3  222, two percent.

          4                 Now, these results show that these

          5  students don't belong in the eighth grade. In fact,

          6  it's doubtful that they might even pass the fourth

          7  grade test. What we have here in these schools, and

          8  other schools throughout the City, is a tragedy in

          9  the making, because these students, and many

         10  thousands of them, are going to drop out of high

         11  school, and never have a real chance to achieve, and

         12  I'm not exaggerating, this is from the New York Post

         13  on Thursday, points out that in the last few years

         14  350,000 students have dropped out of high school

         15  because they were promoted automatically, and, so,

         16  it is important that we recognize what the

         17  disastrous affects of social promotion are. That is

         18  a real tragedy for the City, as well as for the

         19  individual students.

         20                 Now, we can support the parts of the

         21  resolution that have to do with early grades,

         22  improving early grades. And I'm glad that Speaker

         23  Miller says that there's money in the budget to do

         24  this and to reduce class sizes in the future.

         25  Whether you have more money, whether you have
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          2  smaller classes, whether you have attention to every

          3  grade, as I implemented when I was Deputy Mayor, the

          4  reality is that unless you have standards, you are

          5  not going to be able to have educational

          6  achievement.

          7                 And there's no problem in our

          8  children being able to meet standards. I proved that

          9  at the City University when I was accused that if I

         10  ended open enrollment in the senior colleges, we

         11  would have a reduction in the number of black and

         12  Latino students. Turned out to be false. In fact,

         13  there were more students attending the City

         14  University now and getting a real college education.

         15  What we have to realize is that we need to ensure

         16  that our young people get attention and are able to

         17  get, not just through high school, but to get a real

         18  college education.

         19                 They can do it in New York City,

         20  because we have the facilities at the City

         21  University. That is only going to happen if we see

         22  to it that we have standards at every level.

         23                 You know, in the past few years I've

         24  been concentrating on education, because I come to

         25  the conclusion that the one uniformed characteristic
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          2  of poor people is that they lack an education.

          3  People who lack an education need government help in

          4  job training, in housing, in health and in every

          5  category. People who have a good education can get

          6  their own job, get their own housing, provide for

          7  their own health care and for their family's needs.

          8  And this is why I consider that education is the

          9  most important category that we have to devote our

         10  efforts to and this is why I consider that standards

         11  are the key so that when the young people get out to

         12  private enterprize, they have to meet standards

         13  there, they have to get used to the fact that the

         14  reality of standards is a reality of life, and I

         15  have no doubt whatsoever, that all of our students

         16  will be able to meet standards.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 We have been joined by Melinda Katz

         21  from Queens, and Council Member Helen Foster from

         22  the Bronx.

         23                 I should have mentioned this at the

         24  beginning, but I'm sure as everyone here is aware,

         25  we are in the middle of budget negotiation, and we
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          2  decided to proceed in terms of having this hearing

          3  because we thought it was so critical, and that

          4  there were some very, very serious implementation

          5  problems, and my colleague Melinda Katz has been at

          6  the forefront of a legal suit having to do with some

          7  of those problems. But there is a caucus meeting and

          8  a budget negotiation meeting, and so I'm just going

          9  to have to ask everyone to be as brief as possible,

         10  and I know that we have some questions.

         11                 We're next going to hear from Jane

         12  Hirschmann, from the Parents Coalition to End High

         13  Stakes Testing; and then Jill Levy of the Council of

         14  School Supervisors and Administrators, and then

         15  we'll take some questions and then hear from our

         16  next panel.

         17                 MS. HIRSCHMANN: Thank you.

         18                 My name is Jane Hirschmann, and I'm

         19  the Co-Chair of an organization, a statewide group,

         20  called Time Out From Testing. It's a statewide

         21  organization that is opposed to excessive and

         22  high-stakes testing.

         23                 Let me just state for the record, we

         24  are not opposed to tests or standardized tests; we

         25  are opposed to the use of a single score to
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          2  determine promotion or graduation requirements.

          3                 The Mayor's third grade promotion

          4  policy, which I think we really should rename,

          5  because that's not what it is; first I thought we

          6  should call it the third grade hold-over policy, but

          7  I thought I was being a little bit too nice. Really

          8  the name of the policy should be flunk the children

          9  who have been failed by this system, because I think

         10  that's what the policy is.

         11                 It is very politically motivated.

         12  Social promotion was not a dragon slain by the

         13  Mayor. I differ with Herman Badillo, who is sitting

         14  next to me, this City did not, before the Mayor

         15  moved it to the top of his political agenda, have a

         16  policy of social promotion. In fact, the Mayor made

         17  it up.

         18                 Now, how do we know that? Just take a

         19  look at the Department's own figures that report

         20  that the ninth graders are over-age. Thirty-seven

         21  percent of entering high school students have been

         22  held over once or even twice before they graduate

         23  from eighth grade. This is a fact, and it's in the

         24  Department's own statistics.

         25                 I won't go into the hundred years of
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          2  research, because Jill had done it so well, but the

          3  data is very clear that children held over once are

          4  50 percent more likely to drop out, and if held over

          5  a second time they're really finished with schools.

          6                 But our Mayor knows that. He believes

          7  that he knows better than any of the researchers,

          8  and he says a single test will decide an

          9  eight-year-old's future. One test, one hour, 45

         10  questions.

         11                 And what is this all powerful, all

         12  knowing test? Who made it? Where did it come from?

         13  Where is the proof that it can be trusted more than

         14  the teachers in the classroom? You would think that

         15  the Mayor and the Department of Education would be

         16  interested in these questions. Because after all,

         17  when we have a child, and I have three of my own, we

         18  are fiercely protective. We search out the best

         19  babysitters, the best day care centers. We check to

         20  see if the toys our children play with are safe. We

         21  have laws about windowguards, car seats,

         22  immunizations, et cetera, et cetera. This is all

         23  intended to protect our children.

         24                 When we send our children off to

         25  school, the assumption is that schools are a safe
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          2  haven. When it comes to these tests, we suspend

          3  common sense.

          4                 Are the tests appropriate simply

          5  because the Mayor says they are? And I just have to

          6  put this in here, it sounds a lot like the President

          7  who says we should go to war because there are

          8  weapons of mass destruction; and the Mayor says

          9  these tests are reliable and valid.

         10                 So, we abandon all reason and we give

         11  over our children's future to a test, a pencil and a

         12  piece of paper.

         13                 In the public struggles to understand

         14  exactly what these tests are really about, the Mayor

         15  and the DOE has thwarted every attempt to make them

         16  transparent. What are they hiding?

         17                 Here's what time out from testing and

         18  members of your City Council uncovered about the

         19  test:

         20                 First of all, it's misnamed. The

         21  third grade test is not an English language arts

         22  test, it includes no writing, no listening, no

         23  speaking. That's part of an ELA test. It only

         24  purports to test reading, and according to Dr.

         25  Walter Haney, who is a nationally-recognized test
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          2  expert, and I'm using his words:

          3                 There's not one scintilla of evidence

          4  to show that the test is a good predictor of fourth

          5  grade performance. Long-term success in school has

          6  more to do with class size, teacher quality, and the

          7  child's health, rather than performance on a single

          8  test.

          9                 Questions on the test are selected

         10  precisely because the test-makers know a certain

         11  percentage of children cannot answer them correctly.

         12  This is a norm test designed to fail a certain

         13  number of children. That's what the technical manual

         14  says, and the DOE has never shown proof to the

         15  contrary. It tells the press that it's not norm

         16  reference, but it does not show you one evidence,

         17  piece of evidence.

         18                 We also know from the technical

         19  manual that this test favors white children. That's

         20  the words used in the technical manual. And this

         21  test does not favor children of color. Eleven

         22  questions is a quarter of the test.

         23                 The DOE publicly denies this admitted

         24  fact, and has not shown the Black, Latino and Asian

         25  Caucus, and they demanded it of the Chancellor, to
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          2  show evidence to the contrary, they have never come

          3  up with evidence.

          4                 Thirdly, the manual shows that three

          5  questions constitute the margin of error. That means

          6  a child who is a 19, who is a level 1, could be a

          7  22, and the 22 could be a 19, and in our

          8  calculations, based on 80,000 children, 10,000

          9  children could be left behind based on the margin of

         10  error. I think you don't make high-stakes decisions

         11  based on these odds.

         12                 Beyond the test instruction there's

         13  the administration of the test, and there are a

         14  number of concerns there, and you probably know them

         15  all, but I will repeat it for the record. Some

         16  teachers did make use of last year's questions. By

         17  the way, this is common practice, it's encouraged by

         18  the State Department of Education, they put the back

         19  test on their website. No one would have paid any

         20  attention, except that this year's Mayor's new high

         21  stakes policy cause teachers eager to help their

         22  children practice to make even greater use of the

         23  test prep material. Now, the discovery that three

         24  reading passages out of nine, that's a third of the

         25  test, and 12 questions out of 45 were identical to

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  last year's. You all should ask the Mayor in terms

          3  of the budget how come we paid so much money to

          4  Harcourt and they couldn't come up with 12 new

          5  questions? We pay them millions of dollars. This is

          6  an outrage. But the DOE's contention is that some

          7  questions were repeated for psychometric purposes,

          8  but they weren't factored into the score.

          9                 Then I think Melinda Katz's district

         10  should say, if that is so, why were you concerned

         11  about anyone seeing them, and why retest 1,200

         12  children if they weren't factored into the test

         13  score, when all of our last year's tests were

         14  everywhere. Everywhere. And tens of thousands of

         15  children were shown them for test prep purposes, not

         16  1,200 children in Queens. That's just absurd.

         17                 And if these fiascos weren't enough,

         18  the Board under pressure has hurriedly institute a

         19  burdensome and questionable appeals process.

         20                 Teachers had three days, three days

         21  to provide all the data necessary for an appeal of a

         22  child who was a level 1. They had to include a

         23  portfolio of student work. Let's put it on the

         24  record that an eight-year-old, you do not keep their

         25  work in a portfolio. You send their work home all
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          2  year long. So, where these teachers in three days

          3  were going to get this portfolio is really

          4  questionable.

          5                 The Mayor announced his policy in

          6  March. Teachers were given insufficient notice to

          7  mount a credible defense. Only after summer school

          8  in late August do we, the parents, have the right to

          9  appeal on behalf of our children, and guess who is

         10  going to make those decisions? The LIS's, the

         11  supervisors, and 25 percent of them are leaving.

         12  They have quit the system. So new LIS's who know

         13  nothing about this process are going to decide the

         14  fate of our children after they suffered summer

         15  school.

         16                 Now, the final point, which I think

         17  is the most important point -- I'll wait for them to

         18  finish because I want them to hear this -- I should

         19  just keep going? I think this is important for the

         20  Education Committee to hear.

         21                 The final point is that originally it

         22  was predicted that 16,000 or 17,000 were being left

         23  back, then the Mayor announced -- the Chancellor

         24  announced it was 11,000 plus a few. This was due to

         25  a lowered cut-off score. The DOE has thus far
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          2  refused, and I will say this again, refused to

          3  release the cutoff score, the number of questions

          4  needed out of 45 to obtain a score of 591; why are

          5  they refusing to give us that score? Is it an 18? Is

          6  it a 17 out of 45? They have manipulated the scores.

          7  Of course, there's nothing standard about this test

          8  anymore, once you've manipulated those scores.

          9                 And, of course, which are the

         10  children who are going to suffer? The poorest

         11  children in this school, the most under-funded and

         12  the most overcrowded districts, and we all knew that

         13  that was going to happen.

         14                 So, what is my solution, there are

         15  two solutions I offer you.

         16                 One is put an end to high-stakes

         17  tests, and let's really educate our children rather

         18  than passing test preps off for education. And

         19  finally, to take those 11,000 children, you can do a

         20  little calculation, there's $200 million that we

         21  have, take them, promote them to fourth grade, give

         22  every one of them one hour one-on-one tutoring,

         23  three times a week, in the necessary subject area

         24  that they are deficient in, do what the private

         25  school parents do, give them individual tutoring,
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          2  and you will not have spent the $200 million, you

          3  will have money left over for improving schools for

          4  lowering class size.

          5                 I press upon you, I know you will

          6  pass this resolution, but I press upon you to do

          7  more, to use whatever power you have, and maybe it's

          8  the budget where your power is, to refuse to give

          9  him the money that he wants for this policy. I thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. And

         12  before we hear from Jill Levy, and Aminda Gentile, I

         13  want to give my colleague Melinda Katz, who has been

         14  on the forefront of the effort, to shine a spotlight

         15  on some of the ridiculousness of the implementation

         16  of this process, an opportunity to say a few words.

         17                 Council Member Katz.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you, Chair

         19  Moskowitz, and thank you for holding this hearing

         20  once again. As with education, all the work that you

         21  do shines a light on some of the problems we have in

         22  the City of New York with the educational system.

         23                 One of the things that the Chair and

         24  I were just talking about, I was saying to her, so,

         25  in other words, the appeals process is going to be
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          2  exactly what we want in the beginning to be the

          3  original values of promotion, which is class

          4  attendance, class test scores, principals'

          5  recommendations, however, this time it's going to be

          6  done by people that don't really know our kids. And

          7  I think that that is a real problem. It sort of

          8  makes you wonder why we put kids through this test

          9  and stress to begin with.

         10                 I want to make it clear, I mean, when

         11  we sued the Department of Education, there was

         12  absolutely nothing in our papers that had anything

         13  to do with accepting social promotion as the policy

         14  of the City of New York. There is no one that wants

         15  social promotion. And there is absolutely no one

         16  that doesn't want to make sure that our third

         17  graders have the accurate knowledge and are assessed

         18  properly in order to be able to go into the fourth

         19  grade.

         20                 The only difference of opinion that

         21  we have is how to get them there and how to assess

         22  the knowledge that they have in order to have the

         23  aptitude to be in fourth grade. And I think that

         24  this test has been riddled with problems from the

         25  very beginning. You know, first obviously with the
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          2  question book being handed out, and people having

          3  the tests and the questions beforehand; then second

          4  with the make-up test, the booklet not matching the

          5  answer booklet, and obviously, just the main issue

          6  as to whether our children should be promoted or not

          7  on one exam a year. A child is nauseous, a child is

          8  stressful that day, the parents couldn't sleep the

          9  night before, things happen. And in the end the

         10  appeal process the Department of Education came up

         11  with, is pretty much what we said should be the

         12  standard for promotion.

         13                 So, just to sort of make it clear, I

         14  don't think anyone in this Council, and I could be

         15  wrong, I don't believe anyone in this Council has

         16  ever advocated for social promotion. We want to make

         17  sure that our kids are ready to compete statewide in

         18  the fourth grade, and we want to make sure that they

         19  have aptitude to learn in the fourth grade. The only

         20  question is the best way to get it there.

         21                 I do wish the Department of Education

         22  was here to answer some of the questions on the

         23  make-ups exam. I'm hoping that after the hearing at

         24  some point we can ask them for information about the

         25  make-up exam and the problems that we had.
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          2                 I guess in the end what I would hope

          3  is that if we continue with this policy, that the

          4  City decide to actually do new tests like they do in

          5  the State Regents and to hire people to make sure

          6  that there are new tests and we never have this

          7  problem again.

          8                 Again, thank you to the Chair of the

          9  Education Committee. Thank you, to the Committee,

         10  for all of the work they have done.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. We

         12  have been joined by Council Member David Yassky and

         13  Council Member John Liu. We're going to take a brief

         14  moment to vote, because we have colleagues who have

         15  other meetings and we're all going to have to all

         16  return to other budget negotiation meetings soon.

         17  So, if I can ask someone to call the roll? They're

         18  coming.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Can I say

         20  something?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: If you have

         22  something to say, please go forward.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         24                 I'm going to vote against this

         25  resolution, Madam Chair.  I've thought about this
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          2  quite a bit. There is much in the way that the

          3  Department and the Mayor have implemented the

          4  promotion policy that I disagree with. Quite

          5  certainly nobody can applaud the use of a flawed

          6  test that had C B F G H I and then didn't have

          7  questions that way, no one can applaud the use of a

          8  test where some people saw it ahead of time, you

          9  have to redo it. Obviously, those were significant

         10  implementation failings that should be criticized.

         11                 But this resolution, as I read it,

         12  simply concludes it rejects the Mayor's Promotion

         13  Policy. To me that leaves us with the status quo,

         14  and I cannot endorse the status quo.

         15                 As I have spent a great deal of time

         16  in the schools in my district, as many of you did,

         17  I'm sure, I went to a graduation there this morning,

         18  and since the Mayor announced this policy, every

         19  time I got to a school I ask the principal and the

         20  teachers about it. I have found several things:

         21                 One is, in middle schools and high

         22  schools, a disturbing number of teachers report that

         23  they do get students who cannot read sufficiently to

         24  do the work and do the learning. I think we have to

         25  recognize that that is true. That's not, it's not
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          2  the bulk of students, of course, but there are too

          3  many students who reach middle school and high

          4  school without the skills necessary, and to the

          5  extent this promotion policy says we have a moral

          6  imperative not to permit that. We have a moral

          7  imperative to make sure that the kids that are

          8  moving through the system have the skills they need.

          9  I think that's exactly right.

         10                 I have also asked many, many teachers

         11  in elementary school, do you think that somebody who

         12  gets a 1 does lack the skills by and large? Are

         13  there going to be kids for whom that is not a good

         14  measure? Of course. But by and large, are the

         15  students that score 1, do they have the reading

         16  skills that they should have in third grade?

         17                 And the overwhelming bulk of the

         18  teachers that I have asked that, and maybe it's a

         19  skewed sample, the teachers I ask say yes, that,

         20  yes, students who get a 1 do lack the skills.

         21                 So, as a basic measure, it's not the

         22  only measure, and that's why this promotion policy,

         23  as I understand it, provides an appeals process, and

         24  it's not the perfect process, but, again, a vote, to

         25  me a vote for this resolution is tantamount to
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          2  endorsing the status quo, and I do not think that's

          3  something that we should do, and it's certainly not

          4  something that I'm prepared to do.

          5                 So, I do intend to vote against this

          6  resolution, Madam Chair.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

          9  Council Member Yassky. I just want to clarify for

         10  you and for my colleagues, that your

         11  characterization I think is not correct. We do not

         12  endorse the status quo, and I think you've sat on

         13  the Ed Committee long enough to know that that is

         14  not the case. In fact, we have an affirmative

         15  proposal, and have had one since the Mayor announced

         16  his policy in the State of the City speech.

         17                 Our affirmative policy, our

         18  constructive policy is first and foremost pre-k

         19  education.

         20                 We have made the argument that

         21  kindergartners come in two years behind grade level

         22  who have not had early childhood education, which is

         23  exactly what level 1 purports to be. So, those

         24  children who are level 1 at the age of nine are

         25  supposedly two years behind.
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          2                 We have also said, in terms of work

          3  we have done reviewing special education, that many

          4  of the children who are at level 1 are kids who have

          5  not had an IEP but need one. They are in fact

          6  special ed students who have learning disabilities,

          7  that have not been diagnosed, and we actually put in

          8  our budget response monies to better train, not only

          9  special ed teachers, but general ed teachers,

         10  because in order to catch those students who are not

         11  in special ed, you need general ed teachers with

         12  fundamental expertise in special ed.

         13                 I could go on at length of in terms

         14  of exactly what the proposals have been, but I

         15  wouldn't want to leave the public or my colleagues

         16  or anyone else with the impression that this is a

         17  just say no without any thoughtful idea about

         18  constructively how we would go about dealing with

         19  the admittedly terrible problem we have, that in

         20  high school we have kids who are reading far below

         21  grade level, and I just think it's important for

         22  everyone to understand, that while we don't

         23  administer the system, and our primary function is

         24  oversight, we have made a constructive

         25  recommendation and budgetary recommendations to
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          2  address what I personally believe are the

          3  inadequacies of the Mayor's retention policy.

          4                 I would urge my colleagues to support

          5  Council Member Lopez's resolution, and welcome any

          6  other comments.

          7                 I think Council Member Liu has a

          8  comment, and when we're done with the comments we'll

          9  ask the clerk to call the roll.

         10                 Council Member Liu.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Madam

         12  Chair.

         13                 Just briefly, I am no fan of social

         14  promotion. I don't think any of us are in favor of

         15  social promotion advancing kids when they have not

         16  mastered the skills, and we do need a Citywide

         17  policy that truly addresses the problem, the

         18  long-standing problem of social promotion and we

         19  need to do it in a way that doesn't target what I

         20  consider an arbitrary grade level using a very

         21  arbitrary single high stake exam. So, I am going to

         22  vote in favor of this resolution, and I urge my

         23  colleagues on this Committee to do the same.

         24                 This resolution is necessary to send

         25  the message that we are not interested in the status
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          2  quo, but we are not going to fix things by

          3  potentially breaking things even more.

          4                 My son, I'm very proud of him, he

          5  just graduated from pre-school, and in September he

          6  is entering, I can't believe it, I can't believe

          7  we're at this point already, he's entering pre-K.

          8                 Now, I also know many of my

          9  constituents who simply do not even have the luxury

         10  of not only sending their kid to pre-school, but

         11  they can't even send their children to pre-K, even

         12  though there are slots there, simply because they

         13  have no one to take care of the child after pre-k is

         14  finished. Pre-k is only for half a day.

         15                 So, what we should be doing as a City

         16  is focusing resources on the three- and

         17  four-year-olds. They have a capacity to read, to

         18  spell, to count, to do basic arithmetic, but they

         19  are often not given the chance.

         20                 I see no reason why you start this

         21  policy at the third grade. I really do not

         22  understand how that grade was chosen, and after

         23  months of discussion, there still has not been a

         24  good rationale of why we test kids at the third

         25  grade level and not before, and why don't we divert
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          2  resources to the early childhood education, so that

          3  kids can really hit their educational careers

          4  running, and running at an equal level playing

          5  field, as opposed to what we have now, which is a

          6  field that is not equal by any stretch, based on,

          7  it's based on personal resources, family resources,

          8  to the extent possible we should be equalizing the

          9  resources and letting kids start off equally.

         10                 I intend to vote in the affirmative

         11  on this resolution, and I urge my colleagues on this

         12  Committee to do the same.

         13                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Council Member

         15  Lopez and then Katz.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I want to thank

         17  the Chair for allowing me to address the position

         18  expressed by Council Member Yassky.

         19                 As the author of this resolution, I

         20  want to make very clear the following thing:

         21  Resolution rejecting the Mayor's ill-conceived

         22  educational policy of retaining third graders in New

         23  York City public schools, based upon the scores on

         24  the English language and mathematic standardized

         25  examination, by which time is too late to begin
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          2  intervention for the struggling students and which

          3  policy offer those students too little to support.

          4  That's what this resolution is about.

          5                 This resolution is not about nothing

          6  else. It's just about this particular policy of

          7  putting a test in place to determine with that test

          8  that we're going to retain children.

          9                 I am for absolute education of the

         10  children of my City. I believe that resources need

         11  to be put in place, and the whole logic that we have

         12  put in place in the City Council, to reduce class

         13  sizes, pre-k education, is the way to go and the

         14  adequate resources in the classroom.

         15                 This resolution was conceived by me,

         16  the people of the movement that took upon themselves

         17  to fight back this policy coming from the Mayor's

         18  and the educational department was exclusively and

         19  only in regard to the question of testing children

         20  and telling them you fail, you stay. It's not based

         21  on nothing else, and it's in relation to that only

         22  and exclusively.

         23                 And I have to say that I believe that

         24  the intervention of Council Member Yassky in his

         25  position in regard to this, appreciate his concern
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          2  about the overall policy, I think that he is

          3  misunderstanding this particular resolution, as this

          4  resolution doesn't intend to address the entire

          5  policy of education in our City, it's only intending

          6  to address one item and one item only, which is the

          7  high stakes test being put forward to determine if

          8  our children stay or go forward instead of giving

          9  them the necessary money, to teach them how to

         10  write, how to read, on the pre-k, first grade -- K,

         11  first grade, second grade and third grade, and then

         12  you will not have no problem.

         13                 Thank you. And I hope that all of you

         14  vote yes on this resolution, and I want to say here

         15  that I intend to bring this resolution for

         16  discussion on the floor in the hearing today.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you,

         18  Council Member Lopez.

         19                 Council Member Katz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I want to thank

         21  Council Member Lopez. I am not a member of this

         22  Committee, but I intend on voting for the resolution

         23  when it comes to the floor.

         24                 I do find it interesting, based on

         25  Council Member Yassky's comments, my teachers and
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          2  principals are giving me a very different read on

          3  their opinion on this exam.

          4                 I would also like to point out that,

          5  for such a policy that some folks think is so

          6  ill-deserved, when a child fails the appeals

          7  process, is not another test. When a child fails,

          8  the appeals process involves everything that we, who

          9  have been opposed to the single test, have advocated

         10  for. It involves the class attendance, the test

         11  scores, the teachers' evaluations, the principals'

         12  evaluations and everything. So, it seems to me that

         13  if it was a great policy, the appeals process would

         14  simply be another exam, and that's not the case.

         15                 So, I want to congratulate Council

         16  Member Lopez for the work that she did, long before

         17  I was involved in this issue, and for all of you,

         18  and I will be voting for this on the floor of the

         19  Council.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you. We

         21  lost our quorum, but we will vote in a few minutes.

         22                 We are going to hear now from

         23  President Jill Levy, and Aminda Gentile, who I know

         24  also have time constraints, as do all the members

         25  because of the budget.
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          2                 So, we urge you to, if possible, not

          3  read your testimony and speak. But if that's not

          4  possible, then we'll take your testimony, as you

          5  plan to deliver it. Thank you.

          6                 MS. LEVY: Madam Chair, and members of

          7  the Committee, and those who are not members of the

          8  Committee, but Council members, I will try to go

          9  through this quickly, because I really don't have

         10  anything new to say.

         11                 We at CSA, the principals, the

         12  assistant principals, supervisors and administrators

         13  truly appreciate this opportunity to come before you

         14  and to clarify and to suggest perhaps issues going

         15  forward.

         16                 There is not a member of my union who

         17  believes that we should be promoting children to the

         18  next grade, without the skills necessary.

         19                 We also believe that we shouldn't be

         20  putting children into boxes. We should be treating

         21  children as individuals.

         22                 To me that has always been not a high

         23  stakes test, but an issue of criterion reference

         24  test. You will not find this in my testimony, since

         25  you asked me to speak rather than read from my
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          2  testimony. I'm going to repeat it. There is the

          3  issue of criterions reference testing, which helps

          4  to identify the strengths and weaknesses of each

          5  individual child.

          6                 We have not used criterions reference

          7  testing in this system for at least 30 years, and it

          8  is something that we need to get back to, because

          9  then it helps us identify if Jill Levy is having

         10  specific problems in specific areas, then the

         11  teacher needs to address those particular problems.

         12                 Let me go back to policy. This is

         13  not, what the Mayor and the Chancellor have put

         14  forward is not policy, it is a rule. Policy means

         15  that we have a way to address the negative issue, as

         16  we put a policy into place that is not short term,

         17  that does not deal with, I don't know how to say

         18  this, but who gets tested when it's an election

         19  year, and how those kids do on the test, but it is

         20  really focused on the knowledge about children and

         21  the development of those children academically. And

         22  there is no policy here. What it was was a rule.

         23  Children who do not do well on this one test, will

         24  not go forward. Everybody started to scream.

         25  Everybody started to say wait a minute. Wait a

                                                            54

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  minute, what did you put into place? And then we

          3  heard, oh, we'll have some summer program that will

          4  be different. Then we heard there will be a review

          5  process and an appeals process that will be

          6  different, and what we got, ladies and gentlemen, is

          7  more of same old same old.

          8                 So, I agree with Councilman Liu. I

          9  agree with Councilwoman Katz, and with Councilwoman

         10  Lopez, that we need to have an educational policy in

         11  place that starts with our earliest children, with

         12  our youngest children.

         13                 And let me say, since I represent day

         14  care directors, that there is an effort on the part

         15  of this City to choke off the very services that

         16  Councilman Liu was talking about, that Councilwoman

         17  Lopez talks about all the time, that those services

         18  for children who are of working poor families, of

         19  families where single parents are going back to

         20  school to better themselves, to learn a language, to

         21  learn a skill, those day care services that are City

         22  funded are being strangled by this Administration.

         23  What does that mean to us? It means that certainly I

         24  could send my grandchildren, if I had them, to a

         25  private pre-k school, but someone else could never
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          2  send their children to pre-k, because pre-k,

          3  universal pre-k doesn't start until they're four

          4  years old.

          5                 Well, I saw my grand nieces, I have

          6  twin grand nieces, that other day at a bar-be-que,

          7  and God bless them, they're four years old, they're

          8  reading, their language skills are tremendous, their

          9  social skills are intact, they understand number

         10  concept and unit concept and we get children into

         11  our public school in kindergarten who never had

         12  those experience, and cannot do that, and we expect

         13  them at the third grade to all of a sudden catch up,

         14  with no special services.

         15                 So, we have an issue in this City,

         16  and the issue is that the people making policy and

         17  the rules don't have a clue about education. They

         18  don't have a clue about children. And what's more

         19  arrogant is they don't ask the people who have the

         20  skills, have the knowledge, have the history, they

         21  call that going back to the status quo.  That is the

         22  most ridiculous formation of policy I have ever

         23  heard.

         24                 So, when all this came out, I

         25  e-mailed Chancellor Klein. I said, Chancellor Klein,
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          2  perhaps we ought to build bridge classes where we

          3  have third graders and fourth graders in the same

          4  room, smaller classes, and we give the children who

          5  did not pass the test -- I hate that -- pass the

          6  test, an opportunity to be with their peers, but be

          7  getting education based upon their strengths and

          8  their weaknesses, and when they cross over the

          9  barriers stay right there and move on with their

         10  fourth-grade peers. The Chancellor e-mailed back to

         11  me, I keep these, they're wonderful, too expensive.

         12                 Well, gosh, these are our children.

         13  For God sakes, these are our kids, and we are doing

         14  more damage to them by not putting the money where

         15  our mouth is, and really addressing policies that

         16  make sense.

         17                 So, I'm not going to go, you can read

         18  this at your leisure, I know you don't have any of

         19  these days, as most of us don't, but I'm just here

         20  to say that as long as we continue with people who

         21  are making rules that are not policy, that are short

         22  term, not long term, not well thought out, we will

         23  be (a) wasting resources, wasting dollars, and most

         24  importantly, in my mind, wasting children, and that

         25  is one thing that we cannot have in the City of New
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          2  York.  Our children are precious. They need to have

          3  whatever it is we can give them, and we have to stop

          4  short-changing them and making them victims of poor

          5  policy. And I'm going to leave it at that, because

          6  I, too, have another appointment.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          8  I'm Acting Chair. The Chair is temporarily

          9  indisposed, and she might have to leave.

         10                 But also what I'm going to ask is

         11  that the other panelists not do their testimony. We

         12  have all of the members here that are on the budget

         13  negotiation team, and you really needs us down

         14  there. You know, I would make the long soliloquy

         15  also about the importance of passing this

         16  resolution. I do have two children ages seven and

         17  ten, I understand everything you said about early

         18  childhood education.

         19                 So, what I'm going to do is to push

         20  this agenda, and I hope that none of you get upset

         21  with me, but I really don't have any choice, because

         22  you really need us down in budget negotiations to

         23  ensure that we continue to fight for children.

         24                 So, I'm going to ask Ms. Gentile, who

         25  is the next speaker, do you have anything new to add
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          2  to this? And what is your opinions on -- I hate to

          3  do this. I'm going to have to be tight for time.

          4                 MS. GENTILE: Okay, I'm going to be

          5  very quick. I'll go right to the last page.

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          7                 MS. GENTILE: Randi really wanted to

          8  propose ten suggestions, and I will be very, very

          9  brief, because many of you --

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You all

         11  should have the last page of her testimony, to flip

         12  through it, Council members.

         13                 MS. GENTILE: Yes. I'm on page four.

         14  And I'm just going to name them.

         15                 We think that identifying students to

         16  third grade is too late, and that's been stated all

         17  along.

         18                 And it shouldn't take a referral to

         19  special ed to get the children the services they

         20  need, and that's what we're concerned about as well.

         21                 You talked about class sizes, we

         22  think that's quite important. You talked about

         23  pre-k, which is all of us here who have children and

         24  grandchildren know that that is essential and key to

         25  their success as well.
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          2                 We talked about -- you haven't

          3  mentioned specific programs, and I think we would

          4  urge you to start to look at Reading Recovery

          5  programs, as well.

          6                 A previous speaker spoke about

          7  tutoring one-on-one, and while Reading Recovery

          8  certainly has shown that that is a successful

          9  program.

         10                 Ungraded primaries, so that allows

         11  children to grow and to learn at their own pace, and

         12  there is no stigma attached to retention if they are

         13  slower than the others.

         14                 And health supports. It is very

         15  important that K-3 students receive necessary social

         16  and health supports.

         17                 So, you're going to read what Randi

         18  says, because she spent a lot of time writing it,

         19  and she means -- she's up in Albany with the CFE.

         20                 So, is that short enough?

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you support

         23  the resolution?

         24                 MS. GENTILE: Oh, absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I was

          3  going to ask that. Thank you.

          4                 The next person is Noreen Connell,

          5  EPP.

          6                 Ms. Connell, I'm going to ask you not

          7  to read your testimony. Do you support the

          8  resolution?

          9                 MS. CONNELL: Yes.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You need

         11  to hit the button.

         12                 MS. CONNELL: Okay. I just want to

         13  make two things that haven't risen here; and that

         14  is, when EPP did a study of majority, minority

         15  school districts in the suburbs, including Roosevelt

         16  and Hempstead, we found out that those 83 suburban

         17  elementary schools, three-fourths of them -- pardon

         18  me -- four-fifths of them have less than five

         19  percent of their students testing on level 1 on the

         20  fourth grade test.

         21                 So, I think there should be a study.

         22  I support the resolution, but I think there should

         23  definitely be a study to find out why so many kids

         24  are testing at level 1, and it may be a language

         25  issue, and maybe there should be improvement and
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          2  more funding for bilingual programs.

          3                 And also, the Department of Education

          4  has informed EPP that they are not having an outside

          5  assessment of this program, and we urge the Council

          6  to consider having a separate, independently-funded

          7  assessment of this Gates Program.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          9                 Can I ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to

         10  round up the members so that we can actually vote

         11  before we lose the members permanently. If the

         12  Sergeant-At-Arms so we can page, so we can call the

         13  members that are here so we can actually have this

         14  vote on this resolution?

         15                 Is Ms. Haimson here from Class Size

         16  Matters?

         17                 MS. HAIMSON: Yes, I'm here.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right,

         19  do you support the resolution?

         20                 MS. HAIMSON: I absolutely do support

         21  the resolution.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you

         23  have anything new to add to the testimony that

         24  you've heard so far?

         25                 MS. HAIMSON: I just would like to
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          2  make a couple additional points.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You have

          4  two minutes.

          5                 MS. HAIMSON: Okay.

          6                 In my written testimony, I describe a

          7  statistical analysis I did that show in the previous

          8  four years schools and districts that improved the

          9  most on the fourth grade test and had the fewest

         10  kids testing level 1, were those that were reduced

         11  class size most, and I want to refer to you my

         12  appendix in the written testimony for this analysis.

         13                 Yet, this spring was the first in

         14  five years in which New York City stopped making

         15  progress on the fourth grade exam, which is

         16  understandable because it's also the first time in

         17  five years that we stopped making progress in

         18  reducing class size.

         19                 This last Friday I talked to a third

         20  grade teacher whose class sizes had gone up from 19

         21  last year to 23 this year. She teachers at a SURR

         22  school which has just been taken off the list, and

         23  has been making tremendous progress up til now.

         24                 Yet, according to this teacher it was

         25  much more difficult for her to get her students the
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          2  help they needed, especially with the new balanced

          3  literacy curriculum.

          4                 I commend the members of the City

          5  Council who have endorsed this resolution, and I

          6  also commend the Speaker and the Council for

          7  insisting that there be additional funds in the

          8  budget for class size reduction.

          9                 But I also want to make the point

         10  that as important as allocating the money, it is now

         11  also your responsibility to actually monitor its

         12  spending, to make sure that the number of classroom

         13  teachers in these grades actually goes up. The Mayor

         14  promised to limit class size in middle schools and

         15  never -- failed to fund the program, instead middle

         16  school class sizes went up, and there are also

         17  indications that the State-funded class size

         18  reduction program is not being properly implemented

         19  by the City.

         20                 So, I think we need additional funds

         21  for class size reduction. I think we also need

         22  intensive monitoring on the City to make sure the

         23  class sizes actually are reduced in these grades.

         24                 Thank you very much.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you,
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          2  Ms. Haimson. Those are good points, making sure we

          3  monitor the class sizes.

          4                 I saw the testimony, is Ms. Torruella

          5  Leval here?

          6                 MS. LEVAL: Yes, I'm here.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And do you

          8  support the resolution?

          9                 MS. LEVAL: Most definitely.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you

         11  have anything to add from your testimony?

         12                 MS. LEVAL: Yes, please.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You have

         14  two minutes, because we really need to be

         15  downstairs.

         16                 MS. LEVAL: Thank you.

         17                 I have come to support the City

         18  Council resolution. As a former member of the panel

         19  --

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm asking

         21  you not to read your testimony. We really need to be

         22  in budget negotiation. Actually, the Chair needs to

         23  get out of here and put her feet up.

         24                 Do not read your testimony. I am not

         25  trying to be rude, but you really need us
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          2  downstairs.

          3                 MS. LEVAL: Yes.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          5                 MS. LEVAL: I understand.

          6                 When this resolution was first

          7  proposed to the Panel for Educational Policies, the

          8  panel immediately brought the following major

          9  objection against the high stakes test, not intended

         10  for that purpose; against the policy devoid of

         11  remedial intervention; against an inflexibility of

         12  policy that left the teachers' voices completely

         13  out; and at the total lack of a plan for how to deal

         14  with 15,000 hold-outs in the fall.

         15                 The panel members in the couple of

         16  weeks leading up to the vote worked feverishly with

         17  the Chancellor's very fine staff, and they added to

         18  the resolution remedial interventions, a universal

         19  appeals process, the teachers' perspective and the

         20  possibility of retaking the tests. Even two weeks

         21  would have been a major difference in how that

         22  resolution would have turned out.

         23                 But as you know, that was not to be.

         24  The plan was forcibly adopted last March 15. You

         25  know, you all know the results, almost 12,000
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          2  children are being retained, and not surprisingly,

          3  the overwhelming brunt falls, with punitive

          4  harshness, on the most vulnerable students in

          5  communities, student populations --

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Ms. Leval,

          7  I hate to cut you off, but you took the time, and I

          8  do respect you, I just want to say that this panel

          9  is proud of you. I am personally proud of you for

         10  your stand --

         11                 MS. LEVAL: It's not about me --

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I know.

         13  And in the interest of time, I just want to say that

         14  whatever we can do, whatever I can do to help you,

         15  this panel is proud of you for your stand on this

         16  and your testimony.

         17                 MS. LEVAL: Again, it's not about me.

         18  I was asked to come and testify today.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: To come

         20  and testify, but we are in a major budget

         21  negotiation session that we have to have, and I have

         22  to cut you off.

         23                 Can someone bring Helen in so we can

         24  vote, and then we can let the members go?

         25                 Can someone bring Council Member
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          2  Foster in so we can vote?

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK: Moskowitz.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ: I vote aye.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK: Comrie.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: DeBlasio.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DeBLASIO: Aye.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK: Foster.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER: Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK: Liu.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Vann.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK: Yassky.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: May I explain

         17  my vote, Madam Chair, very briefly?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY: Thank you.

         20                 Just two points. One, Council Member

         21  Katz made the point that her teachers, her

         22  principals are opposed by and large to this test

         23  with the promotion regime. I think that's probably

         24  right. I want to be clear. What I said before, I

         25  think most of the principals and teachers in my area
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          2  do not think this is a good idea.

          3                 However, on the two points I said, do

          4  I think that the children who are getting 1's on the

          5  test by and large lack the skills necessary to

          6  succeed after that? Overwhelmingly they tell me yes,

          7  and I think that's the case. And in terms of high

          8  school and middle school teachers, again, they

          9  report that they do get kids before them that they

         10  can't work with.

         11                 And lastly, on the question as to

         12  whether this is a Just Say No bill; of course, this

         13  Council, and your leadership, Madam Chair, in

         14  particular, has staked out a broad series of

         15  proposals for the schools, including pre-K, and,

         16  yes, it appears we will be adopting a budget with a

         17  class size expansion, that you, Madam Chair, more

         18  than anyone else are responsible for, and I give you

         19  enormous credit for that.

         20                 I would say, though, that this

         21  question, this specific question of the promotion

         22  policy, that's really all to the side.

         23                 I would support a budget with

         24  expanded pre-k funding, of course, but once, if you

         25  accept the fact that we've got -- everything else is

                                                            69

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  what we have, and then we've got kids in third grade

          3  who do not have the skills necessarily to succeed

          4  later, the question is what do you do with them and

          5  is this a promotion policy, an improvement on the

          6  status quo? And, again, because I cannot endorse the

          7  status quo promotion policy, I will vote against

          8  this resolution.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay, can

         11  we hear from the last panelist?

         12                 Can you state your name for the

         13  record. And we'll beat up David Yassky a little bit

         14  later.

         15                 MS. TREHERNE: Okay. My name is Arlene

         16  Treherne. I'm a parent of a third grade student. I'm

         17  also the Title 1 Chair for District 85, which is the

         18  low-performing schools in New York City school

         19  districts.

         20                 I'm here today representing myself

         21  and my son, who is on the side. As a third grade

         22  parent, who has witnessed and was also a part of the

         23  third grade retention, I completely disapprove of

         24  this resolution at this point.

         25                 Reason being: Too many years, the
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          2  Department, the Board of Ed, has relied on the

          3  fourth grade ELA tests, the New York State Regents

          4  for High School Students, and the SATs to measure

          5  college enrollment.

          6                 The New York City Department of

          7  Education has implemented the ECLAS testings for

          8  kindergarten students through second grade, and the

          9  follow-up is the new third grade test system.

         10                 The old Board of Ed social promotion

         11  policy produced a clear generation of illiterate

         12  adults, some with high school diplomas.

         13                 Reason number four: It is also

         14  imperative that parents be able to read, comprehend

         15  and have the knowledge to advocate for their child's

         16  educational success.

         17                 Therefore, the New York City

         18  Department should be able to provide parents and

         19  students tutoring, which will assist students who

         20  have deficiencies in their educational system.

         21                 Special education students, and

         22  second language students, should not be targeted or

         23  scapegoated for any detention policy when the Board

         24  of Ed provided below grade level books and

         25  materials.
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          2                 The promotion and doubt letters,

          3  although they were sent in January, were also sent

          4  out in March, 30th, violating even the Chancellor's

          5  regulations.

          6                 The third grade appeals process

          7  should have been established in September, and not

          8  in March.

          9                 The third grade test prep was a

         10  success, regardless of the time frame, because it

         11  shows that students are learning and there is

         12  academic success in poor and lower class

         13  neighborhoods.

         14                 Parent involvement and funding is

         15  essential at this point.

         16                 Since this year has begun,

         17  principals, school administration and even Tweed

         18  employees, have underestimated parents as equal

         19  partners in their child's education.

         20                 There has been a focus more on

         21  student-centered academics and programs than on

         22  parent involvement, teachers' contract rallies and

         23  custodial rallies, less on parents.

         24                 Several parents sit at school

         25  leadership teams and never see a budget, but are
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          2  told what programs will be in place in their child's

          3  school without professional development.

          4                 If any real change must be made,

          5  parents should be aware of their child's school

          6  budget.

          7                 I don't see the sense of parents

          8  going to Albany, lobbying and asking for money, and

          9  going up to CFE for New York City fair -- to get a

         10  fair share of New York City's public school funding,

         11  when in fact parents have yet to see their school

         12  budgets.

         13                 As a stakeholder in my child's

         14  education, and a parent, it is our right to receive

         15  our child school budgets, just like stockholders

         16  receive annual reports and fiscal year financial

         17  statements.

         18                 The only academic accountability at

         19  this time in this system should have been in place

         20  from grades K through 12 years prior. Now the new

         21  Administration has put in place these new academic

         22  systems.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: If I could ask

         24  you to wrap up.

         25                 MS. TREHERNE: Okay, just a moment.

                                                            73

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 With this knowledge of how much money

          3  should be spent on student academic progress, and

          4  the school systems that we have in place, it is

          5  absolutely unfair to place students and teachers

          6  with the unessential materials that are needed in

          7  the school and expect parents to decide what type of

          8  budget their child's school, and what type of

          9  services the child needs. They need a system in

         10  place to make all stockholders and shareholders

         11  accountable for these systems that are in place, and

         12  the child's education or well-being.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you

         15  very, very much.

         16                 I have promised the members of the

         17  budget negotiating team that they would be able to

         18  get to their meeting at 11:30, and as I'm sure you

         19  are aware, many of the educational policies that we

         20  debate and care so much about require funding, and

         21  so if we do not get back to the table, we will be

         22  not doing our duty.

         23                 So, I appreciate very, very much all

         24  of those who came to testify. We're going to leave

         25  the roll open because a number of members are in
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          2  budget meeting.

          3                 Oh, I'm sorry, Council Member Jackson

          4  just arrived, so if the clerk could call his name

          5  and he can have the opportunity to vote, that would

          6  be helpful.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK: Jackson.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: So, we will

         10  leave the record open for them to vote.

         11                 Thank you very much. This meeting is

         12  now --

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: By a vote of seven in

         14  the affirmative, one in the negative and no

         15  abstentions, the item is adopted.

         16                 Council members, please sign the

         17  Committee reports. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MOSKOWITZ: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 (Hearing concluded at 11:45 a.m.)

         21                 (The following written testimony was

         22  read into the record.)

         23

         24

         25  Written Testimony Of:
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          2  C. Virginia Fields

          3  Borough President

          4  Borough of Manhattan

          5

          6                 Good morning, Chairwoman Moskowitz

          7  and members of the Committee on Education. Thank you

          8  for holding this hearing and inviting me to testify.

          9                 I think the major concerns that many

         10  of us have with the Mayor's third grade promotion

         11  policy are well outlined in the resolution, so I am

         12  only going to speak about a few of them.

         13                 As we have heard time and again over

         14  the last five or so months, there is little

         15  empirical evidence to suggest that retention

         16  programs are a successful method of improving

         17  student outcomes.

         18                 Research data has shown that over the

         19  years similar problems have emerged in retention

         20  programs such as correlation between grade retention

         21  and the probability of dropping out and a majority

         22  of the lowest performing students still failing to

         23  meet the promotional standard at the end of a year

         24  of retention.

         25                 The results of this year's test
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          2  scores prove this last point; approximately one out

          3  of every five third graders who were retained this

          4  year failed yet again to meet standards. That is,

          5  almost one thousand third graders face repeating the

          6  third grade for a third time.

          7                 Standardized tests are not designed

          8  to determine what a child knows. Instead, they are

          9  designed to rank children. Research has found that

         10  tests can actually misrepresent a child's true

         11  ability. Standardized tests also have questions that

         12  are later determined to be flawed. We only have to

         13  look at the third grade test administered this year

         14  to know that this is true as we are all familiar

         15  with the youngsters whose score sheets were

         16  inconsistent with their test booklets.

         17                 By definition, retention programs

         18  incorrectly assume that the basis for a lack of a

         19  child's proficiency is due to some failure on the

         20  part of the child and not the curriculum,

         21  instruction, or resources of the school. We know

         22  that inequities currently exist in our public school

         23  system and it is far from assured that every child

         24  will receive instruction from competent teachers and

         25  sufficient interventions throughout the school year.
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          2  Retention programs in effect shift accountability

          3  for educational outcomes from the schools to the

          4  children.

          5                 As I stated earlier, I think most of

          6  us who are opposed to this policy have a pretty good

          7  understanding of its flaws. It is yet another

          8  example of a program developed by the Department of

          9  Education that fails to address the fundamental

         10  problems facing many of our students. It is yet

         11  another example of too little too late. It is yet

         12  another example of our tendency to simply bandage

         13  problems rather than truly fix them.

         14                 The third grade is too late to begin

         15  aggressive interventions for struggling students. We

         16  are spending millions and millions and millions of

         17  dollars on Summer Success Academy, a summer school

         18  program which will supposedly, over a matter of

         19  weeks, enable our lowest performing students to

         20  master what they were unable to master over an

         21  entire year. Even the Department of Education does

         22  not seem to have high hopes for outcomes from Summer

         23  Success. Of the ten thousand or so third graders who

         24  will be encouraged to attend, the Department is

         25  estimating that less than two thousand will be

                                                            78

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  promoted as a result of Summer Success and the

          3  appeals process combined. Does this make sense? Why

          4  are we orienting ourselves and our resources to the

          5  provision of massive interventions after children

          6  have failed when the results of these efforts are so

          7  modest?

          8                 We know what will truly help improve

          9  outcomes for our children and it is not a summer

         10  program with an impressive name. We need to make

         11  free, quality pre-school education available to

         12  every youngster in New York City. We need class size

         13  reduction and more tailored and extensive

         14  professional development for our teachers. We need

         15  to be more proactive in identifying learning and

         16  physical disabilities early on rather than waiting

         17  until a child has fallen so far behind that it is

         18  impossible for him/her to regain the ground he/she

         19  has lost. We need funding for quality extended day

         20  and after school programming so that our most

         21  vulnerable students are afforded as much support as

         22  possible.

         23                 Last, we need to commit ourselves to

         24  sincerely engaging and supporting those parents who

         25  today are unable to play an effective role in their
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          2  children's educational endeavors tomorrow become the

          3  instrumental partners in their children's educations

          4  that they can be.

          5                 In short, as I have said time and

          6  again, our priority must be to focus on preventing

          7  rather than responding to failure.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 11:45 a.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 22nd day of June 2004.
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         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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